
 

Telephone: Port Talbot 883570 
 

MARGAM JOINT CREMATORIUM COMMITTEE 
Constituent Authorities 

NEATH PORT TALBOT 
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

BRIDGEND COUNTY 
BOROUGH COUNCIL  

MARGAM CREMATORIUM 
Clerk: 

DAVID MICHAEL LLB (Hons.) Wales 

SOLICITOR 
Civic Centre, Port Talbot 

 
Technical Officer 
 

Medical Referee: 
 

Treasurer: 

G. Nutt 
The Quays 
Brunel Way Briton Ferry 
Neath 

J.W Burridge, 
M.B. B.S., 
Mount Surgery, 
Taibach 

H.Jenkins IPFA 
Civic Centre 
Port Talbot 

 
MEETING OF THE MARGAM JOINT CREMATORIUM COMMITTEE 

FRIDAY, 23 SEPTEMBER 2016 

2.15 pm  

ON SITE 

 
PART 1 
 
1.  To receive any Declarations of Interest from Members   

 
2.  To receive the Minutes of the previous meetings of the Joint 

Committee held on 17 June 2016  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

To receive the Report of the Medical Referee 
 
3.  Applications for Cremations  (Pages 7 - 8) 

 
To receive the Report of the Treasurer 
 
4.  Annual Return 2015/16  (Pages 9 - 20) 



To receive the Report of the Technical Officer 
 
5.  Building Projects  (Pages 21 - 24) 

 
To receive the Report of the Superintendent and Registrar 
 
6.  Appointment of Medical Referee and Deputy Medical Referees  

(Pages 25 - 26) 
 

7.  Amendments to the Cremation (England and Wales) Regulations 
2008  (Pages 27 - 30) 
 

8.  Any urgent items at the discretion of the Chairman pursuant to 
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972   
 

9.  Access to Meetings - to resolve to exclude the public for the 
following item pursuant to Section 100A(4) & (5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, and the relevant Exempt Paragraphs of Part 
4 of Schedule 12A to the above Act.   
 

PART 2 
 
To receive the Private Report of the Treasurer 
 
10.  Charges for funerals conducted under Section 46 of the Public 

Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 (Exempt Under Paragraph 14)  
(Pages 31 - 36) 
 

 
Civic Centre 
PORT TALBOT Thursday, 15 September 2016 
 
Joint Committee Membership: 
 
Representing Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council: 
 
Councillors:  J.S.Evans, P.Greenaway, R.G.Jones, E.V.Latham and A.Taylor 
 
Representing Bridgend County Borough Council 
 
Councillors:  Mrs. P.James and M. Reeves  
 



MARGAM JOINT CREMATORIUM COMMITTEE 
 

(Acting with Plenary Powers)) 
 

Members Present:  17 June 2016 
 
Representing Neath 
Port Talbot County 
Borough Council: 
 

Councillors E.V.Latham (Chairperson) and 
J.S.Evans 
 

Representing 
Bridgend County 
Council 
 

Councillors Mrs.P.James and M.Reeves 
 

Officers in 
Attendance:  
 

H.Jenkins, D.Michael, S.Brennan, A.Thomas, 
C.Phillips and Mrs.J.Woodman-Ralph 
 
 

 

 
Prior to the election of the Chair and Vice Chair, Mr.D.Michael 
opened the meeting. 

 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON  

 
RESOLVED: that Cllr.E.V.Latham be appointed Chair of the 

Margam Joint Crematorium Committee for the 
Civic Year 2016/17. 
 
 

2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRPERSON  
 
RESOLVED: that Cllr.Mrs.P.James be appointed Vice-Chair of 

the Margam Joint Crematorium Committee for the 
Civic Year 2016/2017. 
 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS OF THE JOINT 
COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 22ND JANUARY 2016  
 
RESOLVED: that the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 

the 22nd January 2016 be confirmed as a true and 
accurate record of proceedings. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

170616 

 
4. APPLICATIONS FOR CREMATIONS  

 
Members received information regarding applications for cremations, 
for the period 1 February to 31March 2016. 
 
RESOLVED: that the report be noted. 

 
 

5. OUTTURN REPORT AND ANNUAL RETURN 2015/16  
 
The Treasurer gave an overview of the Margam Crematorium Joint 
Committee Outturn position for 2015/16 which included the Annual 
Return required to comply with proper accounting practices. 
 
It was noted that any material changes to the Annual Return resulting 
from examination by Wales Audit Office would be reported back to 
Committee in September 2016. 
 
Members were appreciative of all the hard work that is undertaken 
and highlighted in the Annual Return and thanked the Treasurer, 
Accountant and Superintendent/ Registrar.  Also, the Chair on behalf 
of the Committee asked that the Committees thanks be forwarded to 
all staff involved. 
 
RESOLVED: 1. that the Outturn report for 2015/16 be 

 approved; 
 
2. that the Annual Return, prior to Audit 

Certificate for the year ended 31st March 
2016 be approved; 

 
3. that the Chair of Margam Joint 

Crematorium Committee sign the Annual 
Return and it be submitted to the external 
auditors for consideration; 

 
4. That the Annual Governance Statement be 

confirmed. 
 
 

 

Page 4



 

170616 

  
6. MARGAM CREMATORIUM BUILDING PROJECTS  

 
Members received an update on works completed and further 
costings on proposed works following a workshop with Members held 
in March 2016 as detailed in the circulated report. 
 
Discussion also took place on the need to develop a long term 
programme of works for the Crematorium.  Officers explained that a 
rolling programme of 5 yearly inspections are undertaken within 
Council premises and Margam Crematorium would be incorporated 
into that programme.  In addition the Superintendent identifies any 
works needing to be investigated and reports identifying these works 
will be submitted to Members for consideration. 
 
RESOLVED: 1. that the supply of a canopy by 

Fardingbridge as contained in the 
circulated report be approved; 

 
2. that the existing external path alongside 

the proposed canopy be replaced with a 
more suitable surface and be laid without 
joints such as a resin bound gravel and for 
the preparation works for the canopy  to be 
undertaken at the same time be approved; 

 
3. that a specialist contractor be appointed to 

undertake further investigative work in 
regard to the external sewerage system to 
confirm if the system is sufficient to meet 
current requirements; 

 
4. that a site visit be arranged in regard to 

viewing a new sound and public address 
system and for the procurement  of that 
system to be delegated to the Technical 
Officer in consultation with the Chair of 
Margam Joint Crematorium Committee up 
to a maximum budget of £30,000. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 

170616 

7. CREMATION AND BURIAL COMMUNICATION AND EDUCATION 
2016 CONFERENCE  
 
Members were informed that Cllr.E.V.Latham and Superintendent  
will be attending the next Conference of the Federation of Burial and 
Cremation Authorities in July 2016, a report detailing the conference 
will be submitted to the next meeting of the Committee. 
 
Members also congratulated  Cllr.E.V.Latham on being appointed 
national president of the Federation of Burial and Cremation 
Authorities from October 2016. 
 
RESOLVED: that the report be noted. 

 
 

8. ACCESS TO MEETINGS  
 
RESOLVED: that pursuant to Section 100A(4) and (5) of the 

Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded for the following items of business 
which involved the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 12  and 14 
of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the above Act. 
 
 

9. REPORT OF THE 2015/16 INTERNAL AUDIT - UPDATE ON 
PROGRESS  
 
Members received an overview of the internal audit work carried out 
during the 2015/16 financial year as detailed in the private circulated 
report. 
 
RESOLVED: that the report be noted. 

 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Page 6



Page 7

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

MARGAM CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE 
 

23rd SEPTEMBER 2016 
 

REPORT OF THE TREASURER   
HYWEL JENKINS 

 
 

SECTION A – MATTER FOR DECISION 
 
WARDS AFFECTED - ALL 
 
ANNUAL RETURN 2015/16 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This report provides an update to Members of Margam Crematorium 

Joint Committee’s Annual Return, which is required to comply with 
proper accounting practices. 
 

2. External Audit 
 
2.1 The annual audit exercise undertaken by Wales Audit Office identified 

that the loan interest included in the Annual Return was misstated as it 
included costs relating to the new cremators, which are the Council’s 
assets. These should have been treated as a contribution for capital 
costs reimbursed to the Council, rather than interest costs. 
 

2.2 The misstatement figure impacts on two elements within the accounting 
statement, with costs shown within loan charges, when they should be 
included as other payments. These changes do not have an impact on 
the overall financial position for the Committee, but have resulted in the 
following updates to the accounting statement. 
 

  Initially 
reported 

Updated 
position 

  31st Mar 16 
£ 

31st Mar 16 
£ 

Line 5. Loan interest -13,142 -9,887 

Line 6. Total other payments -562,564 -565,819 

 
2.3 The external auditors report is included as Appendix 1, with the Annual 

Return incorporating the final Accounting Statement and Annual 
Governance Statement included as Appendix 2. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

 

3. Recommendations 
 

3.1 It is recommended that : 
 

 The external auditors report on the Margam Joint Committee Annual 
Report is noted by the Committee 
 

 The Joint Committee members approve the updated Annual Return 
and that the Chair signs the approval and certification section  to 
reflect this approval of the updated accounting statements and the 
Annual Governance Statement 
 

 The Treasurer is tasked with ensuring that the final accounts are 
certified by the Wales Audit Office by the 30th September  

 

 The approved Annual Return is published on the Council’s Internet 
before 1st October. 
 

4. Reason for proposed decision 
 

4.1 To provide a decision in relation to the approval of the Margam Joint 
Committee Annual Report and Annual Governance Statement 2015/16 
within the statutory deadline. 

 
5. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 External Auditors Report on the Annual Return 
Appendix 2 Margam Crematorium Annual Return including Annual 

Governance Statement 
 
6. List of Background Papers 
 

Margam Crematorium Financial Records. 
 
7. Officer Contact: 
 

 Mr Hywel Jenkins – Director of Finance & Corporate Services 
 Telephone: 01639 763251 
 E-mail: h.jenkins@npt.gov.uk 
 

Mrs Anne Thomas – Accountant – Technical 
 Telephone:  01639 763604 
 E-mail:  a.dixon@npt.gov.uk

Page 10

mailto:h.jenkins@npt.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

 Page 11



Appendix 1 

 
 

Page 12



Appendix 2 

                               

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Smaller local government bodies in Wales  
Annual Return for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 

Smaller local government bodies in Wales must prepare annual accounts following proper practices as set  

out in the One Voice Wales/SLCC publication Governance and accountability for local councils in Wales –  

A Practitioners’ Guide (the Practitioners’ Guide). The Practitioners’ Guide states that bodies may prepare their 

accounts in the form of an annual return prepared by the Wales Audit Office. 

The accounts and audit process 

The accounts and audit arrangements follow the process as set out below. 

RFO/Clerk prepares 

accounting 

statements and 

Annual Governance 

Statement. Internal 

audit completes 

internal audit report. 

RFO certifies return 

(below Part 2 of the 

Annual Governance 

Statement) before 

30 June and 

presents the return 

to the Body. 

 The Body approves the 

Annual Return by 30 June. 

This is evidenced by the 

Chair’s signing the box 

below Part 2 of the Annual 

Governance Statement.  

RFO/Clerk sends a copy  

of the Annual Return  

and certified copies of 

requested evidence to  

the external auditor acting 

on behalf of the Auditor 

General for Wales. 

 External auditor completes audit and: 

 

Either: 

If no amendments are required, 

certifies the Annual Return and 

sends it back to the Body for 

publishing by 30 September.  

 

 Or: 

If amendments are required, 

reports issues (including 

amendments) to the Body. The 

Body amends the Annual Return, 

the RFO re-certifies and the Body 

re-approves before sending it back 

to the auditor. The auditor then 

certifies the Annual Return and 

sends it back to the Body for 

publishing by 30 September. 

Please complete all sections highlighted in red. Incomplete or incorrect returns may require additional external 
audit work and incur additional costs. Send the original Annual Return, together with all additional information 
requested, to the external auditor acting on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales. Please note that copies of all 
documents provided for the purposes of the audit must be certified as true copies of the originals by the 
Clerk and Chair. Unless requested, please do not send any original financial or other records to the external auditor. 

Bodies should note the changes to the Annual Governance Statement. This is to be completed in full by all Bodies. 

Audited and certified returns are sent back to the Body for publication or display of the accounting statements,  
Annual Governance Statement and the Auditor General for Wales’ certificate and report. 

Completion checklist 

‘No’ answers mean that you may not have met requirements Done? 

Initial submission to the external auditor Yes No 

Accounts Has the RFO certified the accounting statements and the body approved the Annual Return 

(as evidenced by the relevant signatures), no later than 30 June 2016?   

Do the accounts add up and does the balance carried forward from last year equal the 

opening balance this year?    

Do the papers to be sent to the external auditor include an explanation of significant 

variations, including a quantified analysis of the changes from last year to this year?   

Does the bank reconciliation as at 31 March 2016 agree to line 9? 

  

All sections Have all red boxes been completed and explanations provided where needed? 

  

Has all the information requested by the external auditor been sent with this Annual Return? 

Please refer to your notice of audit and any additional schedules provided by your external 

auditor. 
  

Supporting 

evidence 

Have all items and pages of supporting evidence provided to the audit been certified as a 

true copy of the original by the Clerk and Chair?   Page 13



Appendix 2 

  

Accounting statements 2015-16 for: 

Name of body: Margam Joint Crematorium Committee 

 

 Year ending Notes and guidance for compilers 

31 March 

2015 

(£) 

31 March 

2016 

(£) 

Please round all figures to nearest £.  

Do not leave any boxes blank and report £0 or nil balances. 

All figures must agree to the underlying financial records for 

the relevant year. 

Statement of income and expenditure/receipts and payments 

1. Balances 

brought forward 
8,389 91,806 Total balances and reserves at the beginning of the year as 

recorded in the financial records. Must agree to line 7 of the 

previous year. 

2. (+) Income  

from local 

taxation/levy 

-33,173 +3,000 Total amount of income received/receivable in the year from local 

taxation (precept) or levy/contribution from principal bodies. 

3. (+) Total other 

receipts 
+941,831 +965,793 Total income or receipts recorded in the cashbook minus amounts 

included in line 2. Includes support, discretionary and revenue 

grants. 

4. (-) Staff costs -171,571 -189,141 Total expenditure or payments made to and on behalf of  

all employees. Include salaries and wages, PAYE and NI 

(employees and employers), pension contributions and related 

expenses eg termination costs. 

5. (-) Loan  

interest/capital 

repayments 

-9,917 -9,887 Total expenditure or payments of capital and interest made during 

the year on external borrowing (if any). 

6. (-) Total other 

payments 
-643,753 -565,819 Total expenditure or payments as recorded in the cashbook minus 

staff costs (line 4) and loan interest/capital repayments (line 5). 

7. (=) Balances 

carried forward 
91,806 295,752 Total balances and reserves at the end of the year. Must equal 

(1+2+3) – (4+5+6). 

Statement of balances 

8.  (+) Debtors and 

stock balances 
0 +532 Income and expenditure accounts only: Enter the value of 

debts owed to the body and stock balances held at the year-end. 

9. (+) Total  

cash and 

investments 

+122,488 +320,909 All accounts: The sum of all current and deposit bank accounts, 

cash holdings and investments held at 31 March. This must  

agree with the reconciled cashbook balance as per the bank 

reconciliation. 

10. (-) Creditors -30,682 -25,689 Income and expenditure accounts only: Enter the value of 

monies owed by the body (except borrowing) at the year-end. 

11. (=) Balances 

carried forward 
91,806 295,752 Total balances should equal line 7 above: Enter the total of 

(8+9-10). 

12. Total fixed 

assets and  

long-term assets 

0 0 The original asset and investment register value of all fixed 

assets and any other long-term assets held as at 31 March.  

13. Total borrowing 116,603 111,939 The outstanding capital balance as at 31 March of all loans from 

third parties (including PWLB). 

 
  

 

14. Trust funds 

disclosure note 

Yes No N/A Yes No N/A The Body acts as sole trustee for and is responsible for 

managing (a) trust fund(s)/assets (readers should note that the 

figures above do not include any trust transactions).       

 

Page 14



Appendix 2 

  

Annual Governance Statement (Part 1) 

We acknowledge as the members of the Joint Committee, our responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system 

of internal control, including the preparation of the accounting statements. We confirm, to the best of our knowledge 

and belief, with respect to the accounting statements for the year ended 31 March 2016, that: 

 

 Agreed? ‘YES’ means that the Joint 

Committee: 

PG Ref 

Yes No* 

1. We have approved the accounting statements  

which have been prepared in accordance with the 

requirements of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) 

Regulations 2014 and proper practices. 

  

Prepared its accounting statements 

in the way prescribed by law.  

6, 12 

2. We have maintained an adequate system of internal 

control, including measures designed to prevent  

and detect fraud and corruption, and reviewed its 

effectiveness. 

  

Made proper arrangements  

and accepted responsibility for 

safeguarding the public money  

and resources in its charge.  

6, 7 

3. We have taken all reasonable steps to assure  

ourselves that there are no matters of actual or 

potential non-compliance with laws, regulations and 

codes of practice that could have a significant 

financial effect on the ability of the Council/Board/ 

Committee to conduct its business or on its finances. 

  

Has only done things that it has  

the legal power to do and has 

conformed to codes of practice and 

standards in the way it has done so. 

6 

4. We have provided proper opportunity for the  

exercise of electors’ rights in accordance with the 

requirements of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) 

Regulations 2014. 

  

Has given all persons interested  

the opportunity to inspect and to  

ask questions about the Body’s 

accounts. 

6, 23 

5. We have carried out an assessment of the risks 

facing the Joint Committee and taken appropriate 

steps to manage those risks, including the 

introduction of internal controls and/or external 

insurance cover where required. 

  

Considered the financial and other 

risks it faces in the operation of  

the Body and has dealt with them 

properly. 

6, 9 

6. We have maintained an adequate and effective 

system of internal audit of the accounting records  

and control systems throughout the year and have 

received a report from the internal auditor. 
  

Arranged for a competent person, 

independent of the financial controls 

and procedures, to give an objective 

view on whether these meet the 

needs of the Body. 

6, 8 

7. We have considered whether any litigation,  

liabilities or commitments, events or transactions, 

occurring either during or after the year-end, have a 

financial impact on the Joint Committee and, where 

appropriate, have included them on the accounting 

statements. 

  

Disclosed everything it should have 

about its business during the year 

including events taking place after 

the year-end if relevant. 

6 

8.  We have taken appropriate action on all matters 

raised in previous reports from internal and external 

audit. 
  

Considered and taken  

appropriate action to address 

issues/weaknesses brought to its 

attention by both the internal and 

external auditors. 

6, 8, 23 

 

9. Trust funds – in our capacity as trustee, we have: 

Discharged our responsibility in relation to the 

accountability for the fund(s) including financial 

reporting and, if required, independent 

examination or audit. 

Yes No N/A Has met all of its responsibilities 

where it is a sole managing trustee 

of a local trust or trusts. 

3, 6 

   

* Please provide explanations to the external auditor on a separate sheet for each ‘no’ response given; and describe what action is 

being taken to address the weaknesses identified. 

Page 15



Appendix 2 

  

Annual Governance Statement (Part 2) 
 

 Agreed? ‘YES’ means that the Joint  

Committee: 

PG Ref 

Yes No* 

1. We calculated and approved the Joint Committee’s 

budget requirement for the 2015-16 financial year in 

accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 

1992 and proper practices and issued the precept in 

accordance with Sections 39 to 42 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992. 

  

Properly planned its financial activities for 

the year and set a budget in accordance 

with statutory requirements.  

13 

2. We have received detailed financial reports setting 

out a summary of the Committee’s financial position 

on a regular basis throughout the year.   

Effectively monitored its financial position, 

income and expenditure against that 

budget throughout the financial year. 

13 

3. We have ensured that the Joint Committee’s internal 

audit is independent of its day-to-day decision-

making process and maintenance of the accounting 

records and have agreed appropriate terms of 

reference for the internal audit. 

  

Ensured that its internal audit function is 

able to undertake its work without potential 

conflicts of interest and with sufficient 

scope to provide an adequate and effective 

service. 

8 

Joint Committee approval and certification 

The Joint Committee is responsible for the preparation of the accounting statements in accordance with the requirements of the 

Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 and for the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

Certification by the RFO 

I certify that the accounting statements contained in this Annual 

Return presents fairly the financial position of the Joint Committee, 

and its income and expenditure for the year ended  

31 March 2016. 

Approval by the  Joint Committee 

I confirm that these accounting statements and  

Annual Governance Statement were approved by the Joint 

Committee under minute reference: 5 

 

RFO signature:  

 

Chair signature:  

Name: Hywel Jenkins Name: Cllr. Edward Latham 

Date:  23
rd

 September 2016 Date:  23
rd

 September 2016 

Joint Committee re-approval and re-certification (only required if the annual return has been 

amended at audit) 

Certification by the RFO 

I certify that the accounting statements contained in this Annual 

Return presents fairly the financial position of the Joint Committee, 

and its income and expenditure for the year ended  

31 March 2016. 

Approval by the Joint Committee 

I confirm that these accounting statements and  

Annual Governance Statement were approved by the Joint 

Committee under minute reference: 

 

RFO signature:  Chair signature:  

Name:  Name:  

Date:  Date:  

Page 16



Appendix 2 

  

Auditor General for Wales’ Audit Certificate and report 

The external auditor conducts the audit on behalf of, and in accordance with, guidance issued by the Auditor General 

for Wales. On the basis of their review of the Annual Return and supporting information, they report whether any 

matters that come to their attention give cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory requirements have 

not been met. 

We certify that we have completed the audit of the Annual Return for the year ended 31 March 2016 of: 

 

Margam Joint Crematorium Committee 

External auditor’s report 

On the basis of our review, in our opinion, the information contained in the Annual Return is in accordance with proper 

practices and no matters have come to our attention giving cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory 

requirements have not been met.  

 

Other matters not affecting our opinion which we draw to the attention of the Joint Committee are included in our report to the 

Joint Committee dated 1
st
 August 2016. 

 

 

External auditor’s name:  

 

External auditor’s signature: 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales 

Date:  

Page 17



Appendix 2 

  

Annual internal audit report to: 

Name of body: Margam Joint Crematorium Committee 

 

The Joint Committee’s internal audit, acting independently and on the basis of an assessment of risk,  

has included carrying out a selective assessment of compliance with relevant procedures and controls expected  

to be in operation during the financial year ending 31 March 2016. 

The internal audit has been carried out in accordance with the Joint Committee’s needs and planned coverage. On the 

basis of the findings in the areas examined, the internal audit conclusions are summarised  

in this table. Set out below are the objectives of internal control and the internal audit conclusions on whether,  

in all significant respects, the following control objectives were being achieved throughout the financial year to a 

standard adequate to meet the needs of the Joint Committee. 

 Agreed? Outline of work undertaken as part of 

the internal audit (NB not required if 

detailed internal audit report presented 

to body) 

Yes No* N/A Not 

covered** 

1. Appropriate books of account have 

been properly kept throughout the 

year. 

 

    

Examined during the course of the audit. 

2. Financial regulations have been 

met, payments were supported by 

invoices, expenditure was approved 

and VAT was appropriately 

accounted for. 

    

A sample of invoice payments was tested 

during the audit.  

3. The body assessed the significant 

risks to achieving its objectives  

and reviewed the adequacy of 

arrangements to manage these. 
    

The current Business Plan was examined 

during the course of the audit. The 

November 2015 audit report has not been 

presented to the MJCC, however the 

Superintendent Registrar has confirmed 

that it will be reported at the next meeting.  

4. The annual precept/levy/resource 

demand requirement resulted from 

an adequate budgetary process, 

progress against the budget was 

regularly monitored, and reserves 

were appropriate. 

    

Budget monitoring procedures were 

examined during the audit. 

5. Expected income was fully 

received, based on correct prices, 

properly recorded and promptly 

banked, and VAT was appropriately 

accounted for. 

    

Income processes and procedures were 

examined and tested during the audit. 

6. Petty cash payments were  

properly supported by receipts, 

expenditure was approved and  

VAT appropriately accounted for.     

Petty cash accounts were not tested as 

part of this audit. Annual petty cash audits 

take place across the Authority's petty 

cash accounts and this account will be 

covered as part of this.    

7.  Salaries to employees and 

allowances to members were paid 

in accordance with minuted 

approvals, and PAYE and NI 

requirements were properly applied.  

    

Controls are tested as part of the NPTCBC 

Payroll audit completed annually. 

Page 18



Appendix 2 

  

 Agreed? Outline of work undertaken as part of 

the internal audit (NB not required if 

detailed internal audit report presented 

to body) 

Yes No* N/A Not 

covered** 

8. Asset and investment registers 

were complete, accurate,  

and properly maintained. 
    

Asset management is controlled via 

NPTCBC Facilities Management. 

9. Periodic and year-end bank 

account reconciliations were 

properly carried out. 
    

A separate audit of the bank reconciliation 

processes is completed annually. 

10. Accounting statements prepared 

during the year were prepared  

on the correct accounting basis 

(receipts and payments/income  

and expenditure), agreed with the 

cashbook, were supported by an 

adequate audit trail from underlying 

records, and where appropriate, 

debtors and creditors were properly 

recorded. 

    

Debtors and creditors were tested as part 

of the audit.  Sufficient income records 

were available and could be traced to the 

financial ledger.  Budget monitoring 

reports were also viewed, however the 

year end statements were not tested.   

11. Trust funds (including charitable 

trusts). The Council/Board/ 

Committee has met its 

responsibilities as a trustee. 

    

 

* If the response is ‘no’, please state the implications and action being taken to address any weakness in control identified  

(add separate sheets if needed). 

** If the response is ‘not covered’, please state when the most recent internal audit work was done in this area and when it is  

next planned, or if coverage is not required, internal audit must explain why not. 

    . 

Internal audit confirmation 

I confirm that as the Council’s internal auditor, I have not been involved in a management or administrative role within the body  

or as a member of the body during the financial years 2014-15 and 2015-16. I also confirm that there are no conflicts of interest 

surrounding my appointment. 

 

Name of person who carried out the internal audit:  

Signature of person who carried out the internal audit:  

Date: 26
th

 May 2016 

Page 19



Appendix 2 

  

Guidance notes on completing the Annual Return 
1. You must apply proper practices when preparing this annual return. For guidance, please read the Practitioners’ 

Guide (Governance and accountability for local councils: A Practitioners’ Guide (Wales)) – available from 

One Voice Wales and SLCC. It contains everything you need for the financial year-end and the statutory audit.  

2. The Wales Audit Office Good Practice Exchange (www.audit.wales/good-practice/finance/community-

council-money) provides further information on the accounts and audit process along with guidance on 

governance matters. 

3. Make sure that the Annual Return is fully completed ie, no empty red boxes. Please avoid making any 

amendments to the completed return. If this is unavoidable, cross out the incorrect entries, make sure the 

amendments are drawn to the attention of the body, properly initialled and an explanation for them is provided 

to the external auditor. Please do not use correction fluid. Annual returns that are incomplete or contain 

unapproved and/or unexplained amendments or correction fluid will be returned unaudited and may incur 

additional costs. 

4. There are now two boxes for certification and approval by the Body. The second box is only required  

if the annual return has to be amended as a result of the audit. You should only complete the top box 

before sending the form to the auditor. 

5. Use a second pair of eyes, perhaps the Chair or a member, to review your Annual Return for completeness 

before sending the original form to the auditor. 

6. Make sure that your accounting statements add up, that the balance carried forward from the previous year  

(line 7 of 2015) equals the balance brought forward in the current year (line 1 of 2016). Explain any differences 

between the 2015 figures on this annual return and the amounts recorded in last year’s annual return. 

7. Explain fully any significant variances in the accounting statements. Do not just send in a copy of your detailed 

accounting records instead of this explanation. The external auditor wants to know that you understand the 

reasons for all variances. Include a detailed analysis to support your explanation and be specific about the 

values of individual elements making up the variances. 

8. Make sure that the copy of the bank reconciliation you send to your auditor with the Annual Return covers  

all your bank accounts and cash balances. If there are no reconciling items, please state this and provide 

evidence of the bank balances. If your Council holds any short-term investments, please note their value on  

the bank reconciliation. The auditor should also be able to agree your bank reconciliation to line 9 in section 1.  

More help on bank reconciliation is available in the Practitioners’ Guide*. 

9. Every small body is now required to send to the external auditor, information to support the assertions  

made in the Annual Governance Statement. Your auditor will tell you what information you need to provide. 

Please read the audit notice carefully to ensure you include all the information the auditor has asked for.  

You should send copies of the original records (certified by the Clerk and Chair as accurate copies) to the 

external auditor and not the original documents themselves. 

10. Please do not send the auditor any information that you are not specifically asked for. Doing so is not helpful.  

11. If the auditor has to review unsolicited information, repeat a request for information, receives an incomplete 

bank reconciliation or explanation of variances or receives original documents that must be returned, the auditor 

will incur additional costs for which they are entitled to charge additional fees. 

12. Do not complete the Auditor General for Wales’ Audit Certificate and report. The external auditor 

completes this on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales on completion of the audit. 

13. Please deal with all correspondence with the external auditor promptly. This will help you to meet your 

statutory obligations and will minimise the cost of the audit.  

14. Please note that if completing the electronic form, you must print the form for it to be certified by the 

RFO and signed by the Chair before it is sent to the auditor.  

 
 

Page 20

http://www.audit.wales/good-practice/finance/community-council-money
http://www.audit.wales/good-practice/finance/community-council-money


MARGAM CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE 
 

23 September 2016 
 

REPORT OF THE TECHNICAL OFFICER – G.NUTT 
 

 
MATTER FOR INFORMATION 
 
WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 
 

BUILDING PROJECTS 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1 To provide Members with an update on completed and current 

building works. 
 
 
Completed Works 
 
2 The following works have now been completed: 
 
 
 External Toilets 
 

 Refurbishment of external toilets including redecoration, new 
flooring and the renewal of required sanitary ware.  
         

 
 External Cleaning 
 

 Clean down all external walls of the cross on entry, main 
building and the external public toilets.    
  
 

 
Current Works 
 
3 Works currently progressing. 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 

 Waiting Canopy 
 
The order has been placed for the provision of the Canopy. 
The cost of this varied from the original quotation as it was 
decided to increase the width of the canopy in order to 
provide extra shelter and also included for the one contractor 
(Fordingbridge) to undertake the groundwork. 

 
  Supply and install canopy £22,281.00 

   Groundwork                    £6,300.00 
 

Officers are currently working on a programme that suits the 
service with an anticipated start date of the end of 
November. 

 

 Pathway under the canopy 
 
Following some reservations about the longevity of resin 
bound gravel officers have evaluated other options. The 
proposal is to use coloured tarmacadam. If agreed, detailed 
quotations can be sought. 

 

 Wesley public address and sound system  
 
The quotation for installation is £19,374 plus VAT.   
 
Following the site visit, Acoustic Arrangements were 
contacted and are preparing the necessary Health & Safety 
information.  Upon receipt of this, the Council will issue an 
order and a permit to work with a start date determined by 
the Superintendent and Registrar. 
 

 Sewage plant  
 
The order has been issued for the specialist report, the 
finding of which will be evaluated by officers and any 
recommendations costed and reported back to Committee in 
due course. 

 
  

Page 22



 
Financial Impact 
 
4 All proposed works will be funded from available resources. 
 
Equality Impact Assessment 
 
5 A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the 

Council in discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the 
Equality Act 2010.  After completing the assessment it has been 
determined that this proposal does not require an Equalities 
Impact Assessment. 

  
Workforce Impact 
 
6 There are no workforce impacts associated with this report. 
 
Legal Impact 
 
7 The Council has to ensure that the premises meet all relevant 

legislative requirements. 
 
Risk Management 
 
8 There are no immediate risk management issues associated with 

this report. 
 
Consultation 
 
9 There is no requirement under the Constitution for external 

consultation on this item. 
 
Recommendation(s) 

10 That the Committee note the report. 
  
List of Background Papers 
 
13  None.  
 
Officer Contact 
 

Page 23



14 Mr Simon Brennan, Head of Property & Regeneration Tel: 01639 
686371 or e-mail: s.brennan@npt.gov.uk 

 

Page 24

mailto:s.brennan@npt.gov.uk


MARGAM JOINT CREMATORIUM COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF THE SUPERINTENDENT & REGISTRAR 

23rd SEPTEMBER 2016 

 

MATTER FOR INFORMATION 

 

WARDS AFFECTED: 

All 

Appointment of Medical Referee and Deputy Medical Referees.   

 

 Purpose of Report 

1. To inform Members of the appointment of Medical Referee and 

Deputy Medical Referees  

 

 Background 

2. The Medical Referee, Dr Michael Howard Llewellyn, for Margam 

Crematorium has recently retired as Senior Partner of Mount 

Surgery, Taibach and also as Medical Referee.  The current 

Senior Partner, Dr Jeffrey William Burridge has now been 

appointed by the Ministry of Justice to the position of Medical 

Referee.  The remaining partners of the practice, Dr. Violetta 

Magdon, Dr. Rebecca Ryell and Dr Shanthi Jambulingam have 

now all been appointed Deputy Medical Referees.  Dr Llewellyn 

remains part-time in the practice and will serve as a deputy.  A 

letter of thanks for his many years service has been sent.   

 

 Financial Impact 

3. The cost of the Medical Referee Fee is £9.00 per cremation and is 

included in the yearly budget. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



Appendices 

None 

 

List of Background Papers 

None 

 

Officer Contact 

Mr C Phillips – Superintendent & Registrar 

Tel. No. 01639 883570 

e-mail c.phillips1@npt.gov.uk  

 

Page 26

mailto:c.phillips1@npt.gov.uk


MARGAM JOINT CREMATORIUM COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF THE SUPERINTENDENT & REGISTRAR 

23 September 2016 

MATTER FOR INFORMATION 

WARDS AFFECTED: 

All 

Amendments to the Cremation (England and Wales) Regulations 
2008 
 
 Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of the report is to brief Members on amendments to 

the Regulations in relation to cremation.  
 
 Background 

 
2. To a large extent the legal rules in relation to cremation are found in 

the Cremation (England and Wales) Regulations 2008 (“the 2008 
Regulations”).   

 
3. The UK Government have laid Regulations before Parliament which 

will come into effect on 1st October 2016.  The title of those 
Regulations is The Cremation (England and Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2016.  The amendments contained in those 
Regulations amend the 2008 Regulations in two respects; firstly, 
they insert a definition of “ashes” into the 2008 Regulations and, 
secondly, remove an obligation to keep paper records. 
 

4. Whilst Regulation 30 and 34 of the 2008 Regulations made 
provision in relation to what has always been described as “ashes” 
i.e. the remains left after cremation, there has never been any 
statutory definition of that word.  
 

5. Regulation 3 inserts fresh provision in the 2008 Regulations which 
defines ashes as meaning all the material left in the cremator after a 
cremation following the removal of any metal and any subsequent 
grinding or other process which is applied to the material.  Members 
will know that cremated remains are processed in a cremulator 
following cremation before being placed in an urn or other container. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



6. Those who provide cremation services must keep records of 
cremations.  The 2008 Regulations require that these records must 
be kept for 15 years.  Those regulations also require crematoria to 
hold paper records for two years even though those records were 
also kept in electronic form.  The Amendment Regulations do away 
with those requirements. 
 

7. I would also take the opportunity to mention that a Ministerial 
Statement was issued by the Ministry of Justice on 8th September 
2016 describing the changes referred to above but also announcing 
that the Ministry had now set up a National Cremation working 
Group made up of representatives from the bodies that provide 
cremation and funeral services, voluntary organisations, medical 
professionals and other Government Departments.  In the coming 
months it will consider proposals to improve cremation legislation.   
 

 Financial Impact 
 
8. None 
 
 Equality Impact Assessment  
 
9. Not required 
 
 Workforce Impact 
 
10. None 
 
 Legal Impacts  
 
11. The legal changes are explained in the report 
 
 Risk Management  
 
12. Not applicable 
 
 Consultation  
 
13. Not applicable 
 
 
 

Page 28



 List of Background Papers 
 
14. The Cremation (England and Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 

2016 
 
 

Officer Contact 
 
Mr David Michael – Clerk  
Tel No: 01639 763368 
Email: d.michael@npt.gov.uk  

Page 29

mailto:d.michael@npt.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To receive the Minutes of the previous meetings of the Joint Committee held on 17 June 2016
	3 Applications for Cremations
	4 Annual Return 2015/16
	5 Building Projects
	6 Appointment of Medical Referee and Deputy Medical Referees
	7 Amendments to the Cremation (England and Wales) Regulations 2008
	10 Charges for funerals conducted under Section 46 of the Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 (Exempt Under Paragraph 14)

